
Third United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea 
 

1973-1982 
Concluded at Montego Bay, Jamaica on 10 December 1982 

 
 

Document:- 
A/CONF.62/C.2/SR.41 

 
 

Summary records of meetings of the Second Committee 
41st meeting 

 
Extract from the Official Records of the Third United Nations Conference on the Law of  

the Sea, Volume II (Summary Records of Meetings of the First, Second and Third Committees, 
Second Session) 

 

 

 

 

 

Copyright © United Nations 
2009 



290 Second Session—Second Committee

41st meeting
Friday, 16 August 1974, at 10.50 a.m.

Chairman: Mr. Andres AGUILAR (Venezuela).

Introduction of draft proposals

1. The CHAIRMAN observed that, in accordance with the
Committee's wishes, the meeting had been convened in order to
give delegations an opportunity to introduce draft proposals.
2. Mr. OLSZOWKA (Poland) introduced document
A/CONF.62/C.2/L.26, which had been sponsored by the dele-
gations of Bulgaria, the German Democratic Republic, the
Soviet Union and Poland. The document contained draft arti-
cles on the territorial sea and dealt in particular with the nature
and characteristics of the territorial sea, its breadth and delimi-
tation, and the right of innocent passage.
3. Article 1 reaffirmed the sovereignty of coastal States over
their territorial sea, and specified that all the resources in the
territorial sea were under that sovereignty. It would be noted
that, under the draft articles, coastal States exercised their full
sovereignty, subject only to recognized restrictions, such as the
right of innocent passage. Comparison with the draft articles
concerning the economic zone submitted by the same sponsors
together with the delegations of the Byelorussian SSR and the
Ukrainian SSR (A/CONF.62/C.2/L.38) revealed a distinction
between the proposed rights to be granted to the coastal State
in the territorial sea, on the one hand, and in the economic
zone, on the other. Article 1 of the proposal in document
A/CONF.62/C.2/L.26 followed the pattern of the 1958 Ge-
neva Convention on the Territorial Sea and the Contiguous
Zone,1 which could be considered as reflecting general rules of
international law.
4. The sponsors of the draft articles had taken into account
the practice of the large majority of States, and accordingly
article 2 authorized each State to determine the breadth of its
territorial sea within a maximum limit of 12 nautical miles.
That breadth, he believed, represented a fair balance between
the interests of coastal States and those of the international
community.
5. The sponsors considered that the complex and highly tech-
nical problem of measuring the breadth of the territorial sea
had been satisfactorily resolved in the 1958 Geneva Conven-
tion. Thus they proposed that articles 3 to 13 of that Conven-
tion should be reproduced without any change. The different
systems of drawing baselines provided for in that Convention
were generally recognized and had been referred to by the
General Assembly in the Treaty on the Prohibition of the Em-
placement of Nuclear Weapons and Other Weapons of Mass
Destruction on the Sea-Bed and the Ocean Floor and in the
Subsoil Thereof.2 The sponsors did not, however, wish to pre-
clude the possibility of filling certain gaps in the Geneva Con-
vention, particularly in relation to the baselines of oceanic ar-
chipelagos.

1 United Nations, Treaty Series, vol. 516, p. 206.
2 General Assembly resolution 2660 (XXV).

6. The main part of document A/CONF.62/C.2/L.26 dealt
with the right of innocent passage through the territorial sea.
Generally speaking, the draft articles were more elaborate than
the provisions of the Geneva Convention on the Territorial Sea
and the Contiguous Zone, and the concept of innocent passage
and the ways in which it would be translated into practice were
defined more precisely. Thus, all the acts which were to be
incompatible with the right of innocent passage were specified
in article 16, paragraph 2. Furthermore, in paragraph 3 of that
article, as in the Geneva Convention, foreign fishing vessels
were required to observe the laws and regulations promulgated
by coastal States, and, in paragraph 4, submarines were re-
quired to navigate on the surface and to show their flag.
7. Under article 19, the coastal State was authorized to take
the necessary steps in its territorial sea to prevent non-innocent
passage. Article 20 reaffirmed the right of a coastal State to
adopt laws and regulations in respect of innocent passage and,
at the same time, stipulated that such laws and regulations
must comply with the provisions of the convention as a whole
and other rules of international law. It further specified the
different areas in which the coastal State could adopt legisla-
tion and regulations.
8. Generally speaking, the sponsors of the draft articles had
been at pains to strike a balance between the interests of the
coastal State and those of international navigation. The coastal
State was required not to hamper innocent passage or to dis-
criminate between foreign ships and must ensure that any navi-
gational hazards of which it had knowledge were adequately
publicized.
9. Although the sponsors were convinced that the main pro-
visions of the draft articles constituted an equitable and viable
solution to the various problems concerning the territorial sea,
they were prepared to consider any suggestions or amendments
which would improve them and make them more generally
acceptable.
10. Mr. RYAN (Australia) introduced the proposals con-
tained in document A/CONF.62/C.2/L.57. He had asked for
the draft article, which concerned highly migratory species, to
be included in the revised working paper as a distinctive trend.
The article stressed the need for international and regional co-
operation in matters relating to the conservation and manage-
ment of highly migratory species. The organizations envisaged
in paragraph 1 would issue regulations governing the conserva-
tion and management of any given species with the object of
ensuring rational exploitation of the species within its max-
imum sustainable yield. The regulations could include the es-
tablishment of national quotas. The provision contained in
paragraph 4 (a) was very important to many coastal States. If a
coastal State preferred to build up a short-range fishing fleet to
fish for highly migratory species, it should be protected against
competition from long-distance fishing fleets that had the ad-
vantage of being able to follow the fish wherever they went.



41st meeting—16 August 1974 291

That was particularly so in the case of his own country, whose
main fishing for highly migratory species took place within the
200-mile limit. Nevertheless, fishing by coastal States must not
violate the regulations of the relevant international organiza-
tion. He commended the draft article to the Conference as an
effective means of managing stocks of highly migratory
species while protecting the interest of coastal States and of
States operating long-distance fishing fleets.
11. Mr. STEVENSON (United States of America) said that
his delegation had presented draft articles on the economic
zone and continental shelf in document A/CONF.62/C.2/
L.47, but had been unable to introduce them at the time
of the general debate on those subjects. He had referred to
certain specific proposals in the closed meeting on Informal
Working Paper No. 3, but there were a number of general
points he wished to make.
12. The proposals contained in the document were intended
to replace the draft articles on fisheries3 and on the coastal sea-
bed economic area (A/9021 and Corr. 1 and 3, vol. Il l , sect. 24)
previously submitted in Sub-Committee II of the Committee
on the Peaceful Uses of the Sea-Bed and the Ocean Floor
beyond the Limits of National Jurisdiction, and' were presented
as a basis for negotiation subject to agreement on other basic
questions of the law of the sea.
13. As far as the general concept of the economic zone was
concerned, what was involved was not merely coastal State
rights but coastal State jurisdiction. That jurisdiction extended
to the renewable and non-renewable resources of the zone, as
well as to the rights and duties with respect to the protection of
the marine environment and scientific research specified in the
convention. It also involved rights of the coastal State in re-
spect of installations used for economic purposes and drilling
for any purpose.
14. An effort had been made to balance the rights of the
international community recognized by general international
law against those granted the coastal State under the conven-
tion: nevertheless, rights acquired by the coastal State pursuant
to the draft articles, as, for example, with respect to fishing,
would prevail. In view of the need for balance in harmonizing
different interests in an area of ocean space used for various
purposes at the same time, the same language of "without
unjustifiable interference" had been used to indicate that the
exercise of rights of coastal States should not interfere with
those of other States and vice versa.
15. His delegation considered the question of including
conflict resolution procedures to be of vital importance in ac-
commodating different uses of the same economic zone.
16. The draft articles relating to fisheries gave the coastal
State not just rights, but broad jurisdiction over fisheries con-
servation and management in the economic zone. The articles
indicated clearly that it was the coastal State that determined
conservation, subject to certain general principles in the arti-
cles. Although generally accepted standards should be taken
into account, the coastal State was under no obligation to
await recommendations from an international fishery organi-
zation or to follow those recommendations.
17. A coastal State must decide for itself if its resources were
being fully used by its nationals. There should be recourse to
the dispute settlement machinery only when the validity of the
coastal State's conservation measures under the articles or the
correctness of the coastal State's assessment of full utilization
were questioned, and pending settlement the coastal State
measures would remain in force.
18. It was vital to the preservation of anadromous species to
take into account the fact that they returned to the rivers of
their birth to spawn. The draft articles would prohibit fishing

3 Official Records of the General Assembly, Twenty-seventh Session,
Supplement No. 21 and corrigendum, annex III, sect. 7.

for anadromous species seaward of the territorial sea except
with the consent of the State of origin.
19. In draft article 19, on highly migratory species, an effort
had been made to take into account scientific evidence that
made it critical to agree on international arrangements for the
conservation and management of such species, while recog-
nizing the clear interest of the coastal States in whose economic
zone such fish were caught in an equitable share of the benefits.
Suitable principles must be developed to give meaningful rec-
ognition to that interest. Moreover, the coastal State in whose
economic zone highly migratory species were caught by foreign
vessels should be entitled to reasonable fees.
20. The draft articles provided for coastal State sovereign
rights over the continental shelf for resource exploitation pur-
poses out to the outer limit of the continental margin, but at
the same time, article 27 (b) provided for payments to the in-
ternational community in respect of exploitation beyond the
200-metre isobath or the seaward limit of the territorial sea,
whichever was farther seaward. That was suggested as a way to
reconcile the positions of States which maintained that their
rights extended to the edge of the continental margin beyond
200 miles and those that did not wish to see the common
heritage of mankind diminished by recognizing coastal State
jurisdiction beyond 200 miles. Although the principle had not
yet been agreed upon, he hoped that Governments would con-
sider it as a possible accommodation.
21. Article 28 contained provisions ensuring coastal State
control over installations for the exploitation of resources and
other economic purposes and over installations that might
interfere with the resource rights of the coastal State. Unlike
the Convention on the Continental Shelf,4 the new draft arti-
cles envisaged the possibility of safety zones extending more
than 500 metres around installations in conformity with any
applicable international standards. Such larger zones might be
necessary in the case of new types of continental shelf installa-
tions such as airports and superports.
22. Mr. TUNCEL (Turkey) said that, according to informa-
tion recently published by the press, the parliament of a certain
country had promulgated a law enabling the Government to
authorize enterprises to establish artificial islands up to a dis-
tance of 30 miles from its coast. As the representative of the
United States had already mentioned, artificial islands and
installations included harbours and airports and, in view of the
swift rate at which technology was being developed, might
soon comprise many other different kinds of installations. That
being so, the proposals concerning artificial installations in
document A/CONF.62/C.2/L.47 were of extreme interest.
23. The United States delegation was proposing in article 28
safety zones that would extend to a distance of 500 metres
around such installations. That distance was the same as that
suggested in the Geneva Convention on the Continental Shelf.
However, in view of the size of contemporary installations, his
delegation believed that such a diameter was insufficient and
preferred the idea of "reasonable safety zones", which was also
contemplated in the United States draft. Indeed, the safety
zones around the larger installations designed to service the
giant tankers now being built should extend to a distance of at
least a few kilometres. Although the United States draft stated
that the breadth of the safety zones should conform to appli-
cable international standards to be established by the Inter-
Governmental Maritime Consultative Organization, his dele-
gation believed that the Conference had a duty to elucidate the
issue first. He therefore hoped that the Committee would give
the problem the attention which it deserved.
24. Another problem which must be resolved was the ques-
tion of the rights of the coastal State within the safety zone.
The United States delegation was of the opinion that the
coastal State should take appropriate measures to ensure the

"United Nations, Treaty Series, vol. 499, p. 312.



292 Second Session—Second Committee

safety of the installations and of navigation. His delegation
endorsed that approach, since it did not believe that the coastal
State should be entitled to exercise within the zone rights sim-
ilar to those of innocent passage.
25. The CHAIRMAN pointed out that the meeting was con-
fined to the introduction of proposals and that any comments
of the kind expressed by the representative of Turkey should be
made at a later stage.

26. Mr. ABBAD1 (Secretary of the Committee) said that the
delegation of Sierra Leone had added its name to the list of
original sponsors of document A/CONF.62/C.2/L.62, from
which it had been inadvertently omitted. The delegations of
Bangladesh, Guatemala, Guinea, Haiti, Indonesia, and So-
malia had become sponsors of document A/CONF.62/C.2/
L.42/Rev. 1 and the delegations of Cuba and the Libyan Arab
Republic of document A/CONF.62/C.2/L.58.

The meeting rose at 11.35 a.m.


	Main Menu
	List of Documents
	How to use List of Documents

	Master File
	How to use Master File

	Other Materials
	I. Preface
	II. Document Symbols
	III. Full-text Search
	IV. Tables
	A. GA Resolutions
	B. Conference Sessions
	C. Documents by Session
	D. Contents by Volume
	E. Negotiating Texts
	F. Chronology - LOS



	Main: 


